
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
To:    Bay Trail Board of Directors 

From:    Laura Thompson 

Date:    July 15, 2015 

Subject:  Summer 2015 Bay Trail Board Meeting 

Welcome to the summer 2015 Bay Trail Board meeting in Menlo Park.  Special thanks to 
Facebook for hosting our meeting at their headquarters.  
 
First on the agenda, the board will consider the appointment of the following board members: 
Juan Raigoza, San Mateo County Controller, replacing Tom Huening; Antionette Romeo, 
transitioning from alternate to primary presentative for Santa Clara County Parks; and Will Fourt, 
as an alternate to Antionette.   
 
Long‐time board member Tom Huening is stepping down and we will recognize and thank him 
for his many contributions to the project.  
 
Board member Bruce Beyaert will share TRAC’s successful strategies for the recently‐completed 
4.4‐mile Ferry Point Loop Trail in Richmond.   
 
The board will then consider Steering Committee recommendations related to board officer 
positions and the bylaws governing officer appointments. 
 
Finally, we will share the story of a model Bay Trail partnership in San Mateo County, focusing on 
a complex ½‐mile gap known as the Ravenswood Bay Trail Connection.  
 
After our meeting, we will join 
representatives from the City of 
Menlo Park and Facebook to 
celebrate the completion of a section 
of Bay Trail, under Bayshore Highway, 
that connects Facebook’s two 
campuses and provides for safe and 
direct bicycle/pedestrian access.  
 
We hope to see you on July 24! 
 

Bay Trail in Menlo Park, photo courtesy of Streetsblog. 



RSVP 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2015 Summer Bay Trail Board Meeting 
Friday, July 24, 2015 
Noon – 4:00 p.m. 
Facebook Campus 

1 Hacker Way, Menlo Park 
 
Please fax, phone or e‐mail your availability by Monday, July 20.  Indicate attendance 
for each option below. 
 
To:         Laura Thompson   
Phone:      (510) 464‐7935 
Fax:           (510) 433‐5535 
E‐mail:       laurat@abag.ca.gov 
 
Name:    ________________________________________ 
 
I will attend: 
 
____  Lunch  (12:00 PM – 1:00 PM) 
 
____    Board Meeting  (1:00 PM – 3:00 PM)  

 
____   Bay Trail Ribbon‐Cutting (3:00 PM – 4:00 PM) 
   
I cannot attend:  ____ 



 
Facebook Campus 

1 Hacker Way, Menlo Park, CA 94025 
Building 17 

 

DIRECTIONS 
 
Driving  
Facebook headquarters is located on Bayfront Expressway (Highway 84) near the Dumbarton Bridge in 
San Mateo County.  From the South Bay, take Highway 101 North and exit at Willow Road East. 
Continue on Willow Road.  At the intersection with Bayshore Expressway, the campus is straight ahead 
through the light.  From San Francisco/Marin, follow Highway 101 South and exit at Hwy 84 East/Marsh 
Road toward the Dumbarton Bridge.  Turn left on Hwy 84, right on Bayfront Expressway and left at 
Willow Road into the campus.  From the North Bay/East Bay, cross the Dumbarton Bridge and continue 
on Highway 84 to Willow Road.  Take a right at the intersection into the campus.  See Google maps for 
complete driving directions 
 
Parking 
Visitor parking is limited so we recommend using the complementary Valet service.  As you pull into 
Facebook campus, stay in the right lane, proceed to the Building 17 parking lot and follow signs to Valet 
Parking.  It’s complementary / no tips. 
 
Bicycling 
The Bay Trail exists near to the Facebook campus through Menlo Park and parts of East Palo Alto.  For 
the full Bay Trail alignment, see http://baytrail.org/baytrailmap.html.  The nearest transit station is the 
Menlo Park Caltrain Station, a 20‐minute bike ride along city streets.  
 
Check‐in 
Go to the Building 17 lobby and check‐in with security.  Mention “Bay Trail Board Meeting.”  They will 
have list of attendee names.  At check‐in, you will be given a visitor badge.  Wait in the lobby until your 
escort arrives to pick you up.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                                                                                                                                     continued on next page 

SAN FRANCISCO BAY TRAIL BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
SUMMER 2015 MEETING 

Friday, July 24, 12:00 PM to 4:00 PM 
Facebook Campus 

 1 Hacker Way, Building 17, Menlo Park 
 

 

AGENDA  
The Board may act on any item on this agenda.  Attachment included* 

 
     
Noon  Lunch   
     
1:00 p.m.  Call to Order  Chair 
     
  Introductions / Agenda  Chair/Board 
   Adopt Agenda   
   Adopt October 9, 2014 meeting minutes*   
   Board announcements   
   Staff Announcements   
     
1:15 p.m.  Welcome  Lauren Bonar  
  Facebook will welcome the board of directors and share the 

corporation’s commitment to improving bicycle‐pedestrian 
access within the vicinity of the campus. 
 

Swezey, 
Facebook 

1:30 p.m.  Bay Trail Board Candidates*  Board/Staff 
 
 

Consider appointment and vote for new Board members 
Juan Raigoza, San Mateo County Controller; Antionette 
Romeo of Santa Clara County Parks as primary and Will 
Fourt of Santa Clara County Parks as alternate.  

 

1:40 p.m.  Tom Huening Recognition  Board/Staff 
 
 

The Board will recognize Tom for over twenty years of 
dedication to the Bay Trail Project. 
 

 

1:50 p.m.  Completing the Ferry Point Loop Bay Trail*  Beyaert 
  Board member Bruce Beyaert will share examples of creative 

approaches and partnerships that led to the May 2015 
completion of the 4.4‐mile Ferry Point Loop Trail in 
Richmond.   
 
 

 

     



     
2:15 p.m.  Board officers*  Board/Staff 
     
  The Board will consider Steering Committee 

recommendations related to board officer positions and the 
bylaws governing officer appointments.  A nonprofit financial 
report is also included for Board review. 
 

 

2:35 p.m.  Model Bay Trail Partnership: Menlo Park, East Palo 
Alto, Midpeninsula Regional Open Space District* 

Thompson 

     
  Staff will provide an overview of a successful partnership 

between government agencies committed to the shared goal 
of completing a ½‐mile gap in the Bay Trail. 
 

 

3:00 p.m.  Adjourn Meeting   
     
3:00 p.m. – 
4:00 p.m. 

Menlo Park Bay Trail Ribbon Cutting   

  Join the City of Menlo Park and Facebook in celebrating the 
completion of a unique new section of Bay Trail – a multi‐use 
tunnel under Bayfront Expressway.  
 

 

     
 
 
 



 

 1

San Francisco Bay Trail 
Fall 2014 Board Meeting Minutes 

American Canyon City Hall 
October 9, 2014 

 
Call to Order 

 
Meeting was called to order at 1:00 p.m. 
 

 
Attendance 

          
Board Members  Jim Foran 
John Woodbury, Chair  Joe LaClair 
Tom Huening, Co‐Chair  Bill Long 
David Beaupre  Judy Malamut 
Bruce Beyaert  Julia Miller 
Julie Bondurant  Dave Mitchell 
Sean Co  Rick Parmer 
Corinne DeBra  Don Weden 
Leo DuBose  Betsy Wilson 
 
Guests   
Bill Keene  Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation & Open Space District 
Karen Langdon  Kaiser Marin‐Sonoma 
Maggie Wenger  Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
Arthur‐Bart Williams  Canogle 
Sofia Recalde  Solano Transportation Authority 
Leon Garcia  Mayor, American Canyon 
Brad Wagneknecht  Napa County Supervisor  
Keith Caldwell  Napa County Supervisor 
Barry Christian  Napa County Regional Parks and Open Space Commission 
Tony Norris  Napa County Regional Parks and Open Space Commission 
Nancy Matson  Napa County Regional Parks and Open Space Commission 
Creighton Wright  Director Parks and Recreation City of American Canyon 
Cheryl Braulik  City of American Canyon Public Works 
 
Staff   
Lee Huo  Bay Trail Project 
Maureen Gaffney  Bay Trail Project 
 

 
Introductions / Agenda / Announcements 

 
Woodbury brought the Board meeting to order and introductions were made. Mayor 
Leon welcomed the group to American Canyon, and Supervisor Wagenknecht welcomed 
the group to Napa County.  
 



 

 2

Agenda/Minutes 
 
ACTION:  Miller moved, Foran seconded adoption of the 10/09/14 agenda and 

05/15/14 minutes.  The agenda and minutes were approved 
unanimously. 

 
Yes Votes:  Jim Foran 
John Woodbury, Chair  Joe LaClair 
Tom Huening, Co‐Chair  Bill Long 
David Beaupre  Judy Malamut 
Bruce Beyaert  Julia Miller 
Julie Bondurant  Dave Mitchell 
Sean Co  Rick Parmer 
Corinne DeBra  Don Weden 
Leo DuBose  Betsy Wilson 

 
No Votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
 
Board Announcements 
 
‐Woodbury  Bay Trail Project Manager Laura Thompson is unable to attend due to 

illness.   
 
‐Beyaert  Provided updates on the Goodrick Avenue, Point San Pablo and Pt. 

Molate projects. 
 
‐Miller  Provided an update regarding paving of the Bay Trail segment near 

Google Headquarters. 
 
‐Long  Announced Bay Area Ridge Trail’s 25th Anniversary event at the Log 

Cabin in the Presidio. 
 
‐Malamut  Announced Science for Parks, Parks for Science: The Next Century 

March 25‐27, 2015 at UC Berkeley. 
 

‐Co  New ATP grant is $130 million total and is a combination of funds for 
bike/ped projects throughout the state. MTC’s share for the Bay Area is 
$30 million. The next round will be in March 2015. Stated that Bay Area 
Trails Collaborative is working to participate with MTC’s Plan Bay Area 
planning process and the next round of ATP grants. 

 
‐Foran  Announced that Santa Clara County will be putting forward Measure Q 

to the voters to fund open space projects. 
 
 
 



 

 3

Staff Announcements 
 
‐Gaffney  Two upcoming events to launch the final two Bay Trail/Canogle mobile 

phone audio tours: October 26th at Alviso, and November 2nd in 
American Canyon.   

 
‐Huo  Announced that TRAC will be receiving MTC’s Excellence in Motion 

Award on October 22nd.  Announced that several projects to construct 
the Bay Trail received funding under the Active Transportation Program 
including $4.2 million for the Pinole Shores to Bayfront Park, $3.2 
million for the Lake Merritt Connector, and $1.2 million for the Cross 
Alameda Bay Trail.  Contra Costa County Public Works also received 
$300,000 from a Planned Development Area grant from Contra Costa 
Transportation Authority for a feasibility study of the Bay Trail between 
Rodeo and Crockett. Stated that the Measure BB extension will be up 
for a vote in November and will fund completion of the Bay Trail in 
Alameda County if passed.   

 
 
Bay Trail Board Candidates 
 

Woodbury introduced Bill Keene, General Manager for the Sonoma County Agricultural 
Preservation and Open Space District, as a candidate for board membership. Keene gave 
the board of directors an overview of his work and interest in serving the project.  
 
ACTION:  Huening moved, Long seconded confirmation of Bill Keene as a 

member of the Bay Trail Board of Directors.  The vote was approved 
unanimously. 

 
Woodbury introduced Karen Langdon, Kaiser Marin‐Sonoma, as a candidate for board 
membership. Langdon gave the board of directors an overview of her work and interest 
in serving the project.  
 
ACTION:  Miller moved, Foran seconded confirmation of Karen Langdon as a 

member of the Bay Trail Board of Directors.  The vote was approved 
unanimously. 

 
Woodbury introduced Maggie Wenger, SF Bay Conservation and Development 
Commission, as a candidate for board membership. Wenger would serve as an alternate 
to Joe LaClair. Wenger gave the board of directors an overview of her work and interest 
in serving the project.  
 
ACTION:  Huening moved, Beyaert seconded confirmation of Maggie Wenger as 

an alternate member of the Bay Trail Board of Directors.  The vote was 
approved unanimously. 

 



 

 4

Woodbury introduced Sofia Recalde, Associate Transportation Planner with the Solano 
Transportation Authority, as a candidate for board membership. Recalde gave the board 
of directors an overview of her work and interest in serving the project.  
 
ACTION:  LaClair moved, Miller seconded confirmation of Sofia Recalde as a 

member of the Bay Trail Board of Directors.  The vote was approved 
unanimously. 

 
Yes Votes:  Jim Foran 
John Woodbury, Chair  Joe LaClair 
Tom Huening, Co‐Chair  Bill Long 
David Beaupre  Judy Malamut 
Bruce Beyaert  Julia Miller 
Julie Bondurant  Dave Mitchell 
Sean Co  Rick Parmer 
Corinne DeBra  Don Weden 
Leo DuBose  Betsy Wilson 

 
No Votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
 

North Bay Overview 
 
Gaffney provided an overview of progress in the North Bay via a power point 
presentation.  
 
‐Parmer  Inquired about status of Hwy 37 and Skaggs Island segments of the Bay 

Trail and stated that feasibility studies are needed for these segments. 
 
‐Long  Asked for update on Bay Trail west of Zampa Bridge. 
 

Richmond‐San Rafael Bridge Public Access 
 
Huo led the discussion regarding the BATA/Caltrans proposal to provide a 4.75‐foot, 
two‐way, bicycle‐only pathway on the upper (west‐bound) deck, and for a 
bicycle/pedestrian path on Scoffield that narrows to 8 feet in places.  
 
‐Co  Caltrans recommends five for one‐way bicycle‐only travel, 8 feet 

minimum for a two‐way multi‐use path with 10 feet preferred. 
Concerned regarding narrow width—raises safety concerns.  

 
‐Foran  Supports recommendations on the Richmond approach, concerned 

about 4.75‐foot width on span.  
 
‐LaClair  Commented that public access on the Richmond‐San Rafael Bridge has 

been actively sought for fifteen years or more. Willing to give up 
pedestrian access in the near term if necessary—don’t let the perfect be 



 

 5

the enemy of the good. Concerned regarding seismic joints and their 
safety for cyclists.  

 
‐Beyaert  Asked if it was possible to incorporate breaks in the barrier to 

accommodate breakdowns? Cars could come into bike path?  Mission of 
the Bay Trail is a path for bikes and pedestrians. This will not be a 
“complete” Bay Trail segment if pedestrians are not allowed.  

 
No formal vote was taken, but the overall consensus was that there are concerns 
regarding the 4.75‐foot width of the path on the span for safety reasons, and that any 
path that does not include pedestrians will not be considered “complete” Bay Trail.  
 

CBS/KPIX – Bay Crossings Media Partnership 
 
Woodbury presented and provided background on the proposed CBS/KPIX – Bay 
Crossings Media Partnership. The Board discussed concerns that the 15% of sponsorship 
sales was too low, that the potential six year exclusive relationship was too long, that 
the exclusivity terms would potentially damage relationships with other media outlets 
and present Freedom of the Press issues, and that the Bay Trail Project would lose 
control of media content.  This was a discussion item, so no vote was required or taken. 
The general consensus was that the terms of the proposed partnership were not 
adequate for the Bay Trail Project, and that the concerns discussed by the Board would 
need to be addressed for any media relationship. 
 

Adjourn Meeting 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 3:00 p.m. 
 
 

Walking Tour of the Napa River/Bay Trail 
 
Arthur Bart Williams, CEO of Canogle, led a group of board members, staff, and the 
Mayor of American Canyon on a walking tour of a portion of the Bay Trail to showcase 
the new companion smartphone audio tour, developed by Canogle and Doug McConnell 
of Convergence Media.   
 



Tom Huening 

210 Gramercy Dr. 

San Mateo, CA 94402 

June 11, 2015 

 

John Woodbury, Chair 

San Francisco Bay Trail 

ABAG Metro Center 

 

Dear John, 

Thanks to you, the Board, previous Board members and many supporters for the great honor 
and pleasure of serving as a director of the Bay Trail Board of Directors. Together we have 
substantially advanced the length, utility, popularity and sustainability of the Bay Trail. 

I’ve been with the Board and the effort almost from the beginning and would like you to know 
that you can always count on me as a Trail supporter. Now it is time for me to move on and 
make room for a new member who shares my enthusiasm for the enhancement and 
completion of the Trail. 

My final meeting will be the July 2015 Board meeting at which I hope to introduce San Mateo 
County Controller Juan Raigoza. I hope you will consider him as my replacement. Juan has 
worked in the private and public sector for many years and I’ve known him to be imaginative, 
dedicated and effective in seeing important projects through to completion. Juan is a bike 
enthusiast and thoroughly appreciates the Bay Trail. 

I have high praise for the Bay Trail staff, especially Laura Thompson and the current staff as well 
as the prior project managers and staff. I thank them all for their concentrated effort at bringing 
us and the Bay Trail to this point and towards ultimate completion. 

God willing and the creek don’t rise, I plan to continue to be a frequent Trail user and will 
always appreciate this superb addition to the San Francisco Bay Area quality of life. 

Regards, 

 

Tom Huening  









 
MEMO 
 
 
Date:    July 15, 2015 
 
To:    Bay Trail Board of Directors  
 
From:    Laura Thompson 
 
Subject:  Completing the Ferry Point Loop of the Bay Trail 
 

 
On May 31, over 200 Bay Trail enthusiasts attended the City of Richmond’s celebration for completing 
the 4.4‐mile Ferry Point Loop encircling Miller/Knox Regional Shoreline. Beginning with the Trails for 
Richmond Action Committee’s (TRAC) formation in 1999, the Ferry Point Loop required acquisition of 
easements from four private property owners and design/construction of 12 separate trail sections by 
the City of Richmond, East Bay Regional Park District and the private sector.  Board member Bruce 
Beyaert will present examples of creative approaches and partnerships for dealing successfully with the 
myriad challenges of completing the Bay Trail. 
 



Residents, Public Officials Celebrate 
Grand Opening of Ferry Point Loop 
Bay Trail 
 
The celebration was held on Sunday morning in Richmond. 
By AUTUMN JOHNSON (Patch Staff)June 1, 2015  

After a decade and a half, residents and public officials on Sunday finally got a 

chance to celebrate the completion of the Ferry Point Loop, a 3.6-mile stretch of 

the San Francisco Bay Trail situated in Richmond. With the addition of the Ferry 

Point Loop, the Bay Trail has now completed 341 miles out of a planned 500-

mile-long pedestrian and bicycling path that will one day encircle the bay, Bay 

Trail project manager Laura Thompson said. 

The Ferry Point Loop was the first project that members of the Trails for 

Richmond Action Committee, a community advocacy group, decided to 

undertake upon its formation in the summer of 1999, according to TRAC chair 

Bruce Beyaert. 

“Things started out easily enough, but it turns it out it takes quite a lot of time,” 

Beyaert said. “There’re two key issues. You need funds, money to design and 

build the trail, and you need access to the land.” 

Securing those two things was no easy feat. Beyaert said the Ferry Point Loop 

was built through 12 separate construction projects. The city of Richmond kicked 

in $1.7 million for six separate projects to complete pieces of the loop and private 

companies helped build four other sections, Beyaert said. The East Bay Regional 

Park District completed another two projects, he said. 

“We were very naive,” Beyaert said. “We had no idea how long it would take.” 

TRAC members often wrote grants applications to get funding for both the design 

and construction of the trail, which typically requires two separate grants, and 



helped negotiate with private landowners to secure easements to the land, 

Beyaert said. Thompson credited a committed and engaged City Council, along 

with strong community advocacy, that enabled the completion of the loop. 

“The city leadership is committed to completing the Bay Trail,” Thompson said. 

“And, the local group is really unique...It does take a community effort and 

partnerships to make it happen.” 

The Ferry Point Loop surrounds the 

Miller/Knox Regional Shoreline, a 306-acre 

park adjacent to the Point Richmond 

Historic District. It connects with the Kaiser 

Shipyard 3 Trail that crosses through the 

Point Potrero Marine Terminal, part of the 

Rosie the Riveter WWII National Historic 

Park. 

“It’s the most scenic and most historic stretch in the whole Bay Area,” Beyaert 

boasted. “It’s really a scenic stretch of trail.” With the Ferry Point Loop 

completed, Beyaert said TRAC is a little closer to fulfilling its mission to 

completing the Bay Trail in Richmond. Since TRAC was founded, government 

agencies and private developers have completed more than 20 miles of the Bay 

Trail, Beyaert said. 

The city still has 10 more miles to go. The grand opening celebration of the Ferry 

Point Loop was scheduled for Sunday at 9:30 a.m. in Point Richmond. 

By Bay City News 



  

 



!(

!(

S A N   F R A N C I S C O
B A Y   T R A I L   P R O J E C T
Richmond

Point
San Pablo

Point
Wilson

Point
Pinole
Regional
Shoreline

SAN PABLO

RICHMOND

Miller-Knox
Regional
Shoreline

Point
Molate

Castro
Point

Chevron
Long Wharf

Marina
Bay

Point
Isabel
Regional
Shoreline

Brooks Island
Regional Preserve

Wildcat Creek
Viewpoint

UP rail corrido r

Atlas Road

Davis
Park

G
ar

ra
rd

Blvd

Ca
st

ro
St

re
et

S
an

Pablo
Avenue

23
rd

S
tr

ee
t

West Macdonald

Stenmark
D

rive

Cutting Blvd

D o rn
a

n
D

r

H
of fman

Shimada
Park

Vincent
Park

Lucretia
Edwards
Park

H
ar

bo
ur

W
y

S
ou

th

Ferry
Point

Richmond-San Rafael Br idge

Gertrude

Point San Pablo
Yacht Harbor

Central

Richm ond
BART
Station

El Cerrito
del Norte
BART
Station

S
an

Pabl
o

A
ve

nu
e

R ich
mond

Parkw
ay

Wildcat Creek Trail

Marina Bay Pkwy

¯

Keller
Beach Regatta

Hall

Canal

Seacliff Dr

B rickyard Cove

Hen
sle

y
St

Eastshore State Park

Pennsylvania

0 0.3 0.6 0.9 1.2
Miles

Richmond Greenway
Ohio Ave

West County
Landfill

580

80

Marina
Bay Park

Parr San Pablo Cre ek

O
hlone

Greenw
ay

Trail

M
ar

in
a

W
y

April 10, 2015

Me ek er Tidal Cree
k

P

Water Bodies

Incomplete

Complete

Parks/Open Space

Bay Trail

Connector trails

Incomplete

Complete

P Parking

P

P
P P P

P

P P
P

P

P

P

P

P

PP

Terminal 4

Point Molate
former NFD

S
51

st
St

G
o

od
r i

ck
A

ve

Shipyard 3

Boat Ramp
Street

McLaughlin

open 2016

op
en

20

16

FERRY POINT
LOOP



NAMING

ACCESS TO LAND

FUNDS TO DESIGN AND BUILD

WAY FINDING

ENRICHMENT

Completing the Ferry Point Loop



OPEN IN 2012

FUTURE  BAY  TRAIL

OPEN IN 2012

.79 mi

.18 mi

.71
 m

i

.2
8 m

i

.5
6 m

i

.2
9 m

i

.11 mi

.4
9 m

i

.65 mi

.28 mi

1.2 mi

.79
  m

i

1.17 mi

.52 m
i

.33 mi

.28 m
i

e

.2 Kilometers approximate.10

0 .2 Miles approximat.1

 

 

 
 

0.00 mi

PUBLIC SHORE  ACCESS

C
A

N
A

L  B
L V

D

FE
RR

Y 
PO

IN
T T

UN
NE

L

B L V
D

 S
.  

G
A

R
R

A
R

D

S E A C L I F
F   

D R I V
E

To  I-580

↓

Richmond 
Plunge

▾

▾to I-580 E ↓

Interpretive 
Overlook

Keller Beach

To 
North 
Shore ↓







   
    

 
MEMO 
 
 
Date:    July 15, 2015 
 
To:    Bay Trail Board of Directors  
 
From:    Laura Thompson 
 
Subject:  Bay Trail Board of Directors officer positions 
 

 
At the June 8 meeting, the Steering Committee made three board officer‐related recommendations for 
board of directors consideration and vote at the July 24 meeting. 
 
Steering Committee  
 
The San Franciso Bay Trail Project bylaws state that the Steering Committee shall be composed of no 
less than five members.  With Tom Huening’s departure, the Committee would consist of five (5) voting 
members:  John Woodbury, Julie Bondurant, Leo DuBose, Joe Clair (Maggie Wenger as alternate) and 
Betsy Wilson.  This is consistent with the bylaws.   
 

The board of directors hereby establishes a standing committee to be known as the 
Steering Committee composed of not less than five (5) of its members.  A quorum of 
three (3) is hereby established for the transaction of buiness assigned by the board.  The 
Steering Committee shall meet regularly, not less than one time per quarter, and shall 
provide regular oversight of the operations of the corporation.  The Steering Committee 
shall have the authority to delegate its assigned tasks as it sees fit. 

 
The Steering Committee agreed that at least one additional person on the Steering Committee would 
help ensure regular quorums for Steering Committee meetings.   
 
SC ACTION:  Wenger moved, Bondurant seconded the motion to recommend that staff investigate 

potential for an additional person or people to make it at least a 6‐member Steering 
Committee.  This recommendation will go to a vote of the full board of directors at 
their next meeting.   

 
Yes Votes: 

John Woodbury  Julie Bondurant 
Maggie Wenger  Betsy Wilson 
   

No Votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
 
 
 



   
    

RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION 
 
Authorize staff to work with interested members of the Bay Trail Board and recruit one member to 
the Bay Trail Steering Committee.  
 
 
Co‐Chair 
 
Tom served as co‐shair (vice chair) of the board of directors and this position will need to be filled.  The 
bylaws address the purpose and the duties of the vice chair: 
 

Vice Chair.  In the absence of the chair, the vice chair shall preside at meetings of the 
board of directors and carry out any other duties of the chair.  He/she shall have all 
powers of the chair when so acting and shall be subject to all restrictions on the chair.  In 
addition, the vice chair shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as 
the board or the bylaws may provide. 

 
Julie Bondurant, an active member of the Bay Trail Steering Committee and Board of Directors for many 
years has expressed an interest in serving as the co‐chair. The Steering Committee voted to 
recommended that she serve in this role.  
 
SC ACTION:  Wilson moved, Wenger seconded the motion to recommend Julie Bondurant as the 

co‐chair of the Bay Trail Board of Directors.  This recommendation will go to a vote of 
the full board of directors at their next meeting.   

 
Yes Votes: 

John Woodbury  Betsy Wilson 
Maggie Wenger   
   

No Votes: None 
Abstentions: Julie Bondurant 
 
RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION 
 
Appoint  Julie Bondurant as Co‐Chair of the Bay Trail Board of Directors.  
 
 
Officers 
 
Additional officer assignments are outlined in the bylaws (see excerpts below).  The positions of 
secretary and treasurer have not been assigned to board members in recent years.  The duties of these 
positions as described in the bylaws have historically been conducted by the Bay Trail Project Manager.  
 
The Steering Committee discussed the need to be consistent with the bylaws, but also be consistent 
with the way business is conducted.  The Steering Committee discussed updating the bylaws to allow for 
staff to conduct the duties of the secretary and treasurer positions. 
 
SC ACTION:  Wilson moved, Wenger seconded the motion to amend the bylaws to allow an option 

for Bay Trail Project staff to conduct the tasks required of the secretary and treasurer 



   
    

positions.  The Committee also requested regular reporting of Bay Trail nonprofit 
expenses and revenues at each meeting of the full board.  This recommendation will 
go to a full vote of the board at their next meeting.   

 
Yes Votes: 

John Woodbury  Julie Bondurant 
Maggie Wenger  Betsy Wilson 
   

No Votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
 
RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION 
 
Revise the Bay Trail Project bylaws and authorize Bay Trail Project staff to carry out the tasks required 
of the secretary and treasurer officer positions.  Underlined text as shown. 
 

1. Officers.  The officers of the corporation shall be a chair, administrative officer, vice chair, 
secretary, treasurer and chief financial officer.  Any number of offices may be held by the same 
person, except that neither the secretary, chief financial officer nor treasurer may serve 
concurrently as the chair of the board. The tasks of secretary and treasurer may be conducted 
by Bay Trail staff as directed by the Board.  

 
This action requires a 2/3 vote of the Board membership (21 people).  
 
 

ARTICLE IX 
OFFICERS 

 
2. Officers.  The officers of the corporation shall be a chair, administrative officer, vice chair, 

secretary, treasurer and chief financial officer.  Any number of offices may be held by the same 
person, except that neither the secretary, chief financial officer nor treasurer may serve 
concurrently as the chair of the board. The tasks of secretary and treasurer may be conducted by 
Bay Trail staff as directed by the Board.  

 
3. Officers.  The chair, vice chair, secretary and treasurer shall be elected by the board of directors 

from its members.  The administrative officer of the corporation shall be the Executive Director of 
ABAG and the chief financial officer shall be the Finance Director of ABAG. 

 
4. Term.  The officers of the corporation, except those appointed under Section 2 of this Article, 

shall be chosen annually by the board and shall serve at the pleasure of the board, subject to the 
rights, if any, of any officer under any contract of employment. 

 
5. Removal of Officers.  The appointed officers must be removed, with or without cause, by the 

board, at any regular or special meeting of the board, if such officers cease to serve as the ABAG 
Executive Director or Finance Director, respectively.  The officer(s) removed must be replaced by 
the board with the person currently holding such office(s) at ABAG.  The elected officers may be 
removed with or without cause by the board at a regular or special meeting of the board. 

 



   
    

6. Resignation of Officers.  Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the 
corporation.  Any resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of that notice or at any 
later time specified in that notice; and, unless otherwise specified in that notice, the acceptance 
of the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.  Any resignation is without 
prejudice to the rights, if any, of the corporation under any contract to which the officer is a 
party. 

 
7. Vacancies in Offices.  A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, 

disqualification or any other cause shall be filled only in the manner prescribed in these bylaws 
for regular appointments to that office. 

 
8. Responsibilities of Officers. 

a. Chair.  The chair shall preside at meetings of the board of directors and shall exercise 
and perform such other powers and duties as may from time to time be assigned to 
him/her by the board or as may be prescribed by the bylaws. 

b. Administrative Officer.  Subject to such supervisory powers as may be given by the board 
of directors to the chair, the administrative officer shall generally supervise and execute 
the business of the corporation.  He/she shall have such other powers and duties as may 
be prescribed by the board or the bylaws. 

c. Vice Chair.  In the absence of the chair, the vice chair shall preside at meetings of the 
board of directors and carry out any other duties of the chair.  He/she shall have all 
powers of the chair when so acting and shall be subject to all restrictions on the chair.  In 
addition, the vice chair shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as 
the board or the bylaws may provide. 

d. Secretary.  The secretary shall attend to the following: 
i. Book of minutes.  The secretary shall keep or cause to be kept, at the principal 

executive office or such other place as the board may direct, a book of minutes 
of all meetings and actions of directors and committees of directors, with the 
time and place of holding, whether regular or special, and, if special, how 
authorized, the notice given, the names of those present at such meetings and 
the proceedings of such meetings. 

ii. Notices, seal and other duties.  The secretary shall give, or cause to be given, 
notice of all meetings of the board required by the bylaws to be given.  He/she 
shall keep the seal of the corporation, if any, in safe custody.  He/she shall have 
such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the 
board of directors or the bylaws. 

e. Chief Financial Officer.  The chief financial officer shall attend to the following: 
i. Books of account.  The chief financial officer shall keep and maintain, or cause to 

be kept and maintained, adequate and correct books and records of accounts of 
the properties and business transactions of the corporation, including accounts 
of its assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains, losses, capital, retained 
earnings, and other matters customarily included in financial statements.  The 
books of account shall be open to inspection by any director at all reasonable 
times. 

ii. Deposit and disbursement of money and valuables.  The chief financial officer 
shall deposit all money and other valuables in the name and to the credit of the 
corporation with such depositories as may be designated by the board; shall 
disburse the funds of the corporation as may be ordered by the board; shall 
render to the administrative officer and directors, whenever they request it, an 



   
    

account of all of his transactions as chief financial officer and of the financial 
condition of the corporation; and shall have other powers and perform such 
other duties as may be prescribed by the board or the bylaws. 

iii. Bond.  If required by the board, the chief financial officer shall give the 
corporation a bond in the amount and with the surety or sureties specified by 
the board for faithful performance of the duties of his office and for restoration 
to the corporation of all its books, papers, vouchers, money, and other property 
of every kind in his possession or under his control on his death, resignation, 
retirement, or removal from office. 

f. Treasurer.  The treasurer shall oversee the operation of the corporate finances as 
directed by the chair and the board of directors. 

 
 
Recommended Board of Directors Action 
 

1. Authorize staff to work with interested members of the Bay Trail Board and recruit one member 
to the Bay Trail Steering Committee.  
 

2. Appoint  Julie Bondurant as Co‐Chair of the Bay Trail Board of Directors.  
 

3. Revise the Bay Trail Project bylaws and authorize Bay Trail Project staff to carry out the tasks 
required of the secretary and treasurer officer positions.  Underlined text as shown. 

 
1. Officers.  The officers of the corporation shall be a chair, administrative officer, vice 

chair, secretary, treasurer and chief financial officer.  Any number of offices may be 
held by the same person, except that neither the secretary, chief financial officer nor 
treasurer may serve concurrently as the chair of the board. The tasks of secretary 
and treasurer may be conducted by Bay Trail staff as directed by the Board.  

 
This action requires a 2/3 vote of the Board membership (21 people).  

 
 



REVENUES

Bay Trail merchandise sales 1,748

Donations 4,968

United Way donations 214

Interest income 11

Total Revenues 6,941

EXPENSES

Event Sponsorships

OpenRoad with Doug McConnell 5,000

EBRPD 80th Anniversary Gala 1,500

Pacific Flyway Festival 65

Bay Area Open Space Council 1,000

Memberships

Bay Area Open Space Council 250

American Trails 100

Special Projects

Dakota Press: Bay Trail notecards 1,030

Bay Nature magazine: 100 copies 346

Conferences

CA Trails & Greenways 1,817

Bay Area Open Space Council 650

Board Meeting expenses 413

Misc

Bank Charges 200

Board/Partner gifts 168

Travel 42

Postage credit ‐1,003

Total Expenses 11,578

Current Bank account balance 91,258

Climate Ready contribution 15,000

Pass‐Through Boat Ramp Street 16,100

Pass‐Through Richmond Plunge 9,651

Balance after these expenses 50,507

San Francisco Bay Trail Project

NonProfit Financial Report

July 2014 ‐ April 2015



  PROJECT=106000 (BAY TRAIL IMPLEMENTATION)

FY Budget Actual Actual  % of Budget 
 Current Month Year-to-date  Budget Balance 

REVENUES
GRANT REVENUE                      267,677.00 25,026.76 207,293.93 (77.44)% 60,383.07
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    TOTAL REVENUES 267,677.00 25,026.76 207,293.93 (77.44)% 60,383.07
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
     
EXPENSES
DIRECT LABOR
PERSONNEL COSTS                    169,085.00 17,257.60 141,739.29 83.83% 27,345.71
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS 169,085.00 17,257.60 141,739.29 83.83% 27,345.71
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
     
CONSULTANT SERVICES
TECHNICAL CONSULTANT FEES          17,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 17,000.00
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    TOTAL CONSULTANT SERVICES 17,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 17,000.00
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
     
OTHER DIRECT CHARGES
TRAVEL                             350.00 0.00 51.84 14.81% 298.16
PRINTING IN-HOUSE                  250.00 7.00 519.20 207.68% (269.20)
PRINTING OUTSIDE                   70.00 0.00 214.52 306.46% (144.52)
CONFERENCES & SEMINARS             3,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 3,500.00
MAILING LABELS                     0.00 0.00 149.64 n/m (149.64)
POSTAGE                            0.00 4.87 816.63 n/m (816.63)
TELEPHONE                          0.00 0.00 91.00 n/m (91.00)
     
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    TOTAL OTHER DIRECT CHARGES 4,170.00 11.87 1,842.83 44.19% 2,327.17
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
     
INDIRECT CHARGES
OVERHEAD                           760,004.00 7,757.29 63,711.81 8.38% 696,292.19
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    TOTAL INDIRECT CHARGES 760,004.00 7,757.29 63,711.81 8.38% 696,292.19
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    TOTAL EXPENSES 950,259.00 25,026.76 207,293.93 21.81% 742,965.07
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (682,582.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00% (682,582.00)
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------

INCOME STATEMENT

ABAG
 MAY-15   USD 



  PROJECT=106026 (BAY TRAIL CAPITAL SUPPORT)

FY Budget Actual Actual  % of Budget 
 Current Month Year-to-date  Budget Balance 

REVENUES
GRANT REVENUE                      454,139.00 23,233.02 407,255.70 (89.68)% 46,883.30
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    TOTAL REVENUES 454,139.00 23,233.02 407,255.70 (89.68)% 46,883.30
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
     
EXPENSES
DIRECT LABOR
PERSONNEL COSTS                    276,772.00 16,028.30 280,962.89 101.51% (4,190.89)
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS 276,772.00 16,028.30 280,962.89 101.51% (4,190.89)
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
     
INDIRECT CHARGES
OVERHEAD                           124,409.00 7,204.72 126,292.81 101.51% (1,883.81)
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    TOTAL INDIRECT CHARGES 124,409.00 7,204.72 126,292.81 101.51% (1,883.81)
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    TOTAL EXPENSES 401,181.00 23,233.02 407,255.70 101.51% (6,074.70)
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 52,958.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 52,958.00
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------

INCOME STATEMENT

ABAG
 MAY-15   USD 



  PROJECT=106018 (BAY TRAIL RDP VI)

FY Budget Actual Actual  % of Budget 
 Current Month Year-to-date  Budget Balance 

REVENUES
GRANT REVENUE                      1,549,940.00 268,200.00 548,933.63 (35.42)% 1,001,006.37
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    TOTAL REVENUES 1,549,940.00 268,200.00 548,933.63 (35.42)% 1,001,006.37
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
     
EXPENSES
     
CONSULTANT SERVICES
TECHNICAL CONSULTANT FEES          0.00 95,466.37 268,200.00 n/m (268,200.00)
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    TOTAL CONSULTANT SERVICES 0.00 95,466.37 268,200.00 n/m (268,200.00)
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
     
SERVICES BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES
PASSTHROUGH TO OTHER AGENCIES   1,549,940.00 172,733.63 280,733.63 18.11% 1,269,206.37
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    TOTAL OTHER AGENCIES 1,549,940.00 172,733.63 280,733.63 18.11% 1,269,206.37
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    TOTAL EXPENSES 1,549,940.00 268,200.00 548,933.63 35.42% 1,001,006.37
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 0.00 0.00 0.00 n/m 0.00
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------

INCOME STATEMENT

ABAG
 MAY-15   USD 



  PROJECT=106027 (SAN FRANCISCO BAY TRAIL MOBILE APP)

FY Budget Actual Actual  % of Budget 
 Current Month Year-to-date  Budget Balance 

REVENUES
GRANT REVENUE                      0.00 0.00 22,882.37 n/m (22,882.37)
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    TOTAL REVENUES 0.00 0.00 22,882.37 n/m (22,882.37)
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
     
EXPENSES
     
CONSULTANT SERVICES
TECHNICAL CONSULTANT FEES          0.00 0.00 22,882.37 n/m (22,882.37)
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    TOTAL CONSULTANT SERVICES 0.00 0.00 22,882.37 n/m (22,882.37)
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    TOTAL EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 22,882.37 n/m (22,882.37)
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------
    SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 0.00 0.00 0.00 n/m 0.00
     --------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------

INCOME STATEMENT

ABAG
 MAY-15   USD 



City of East Palo Alto
City of Menlo Park
Midpeninsula Regional Open Space District 

Completing the Ravenswood
Bay Trail Connection

A Model Bay Trail Partnership

San Mateo County Parks Department
Santa Clara County Board of Supervisors
San Francisco Public Utilities Commission
Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition
Facebook
Samtrans

And Many Others, including…

July 24, 2015
Bay Trail Board Meeting



You are here



You ae here

Ravenswood Bay Trail
Connection

• ½‐mile gap in the Bay Trail

• located at the boundary of two cities: 
East Palo Alto and Menlo Park

• situated along an active transportation 
corridor serving major employers

• final gap in 80 miles of continuous trail 
linking three counties and a toll bridge

• lack of trail facility requires bicyclists 
and pedestrians to detour 2 miles on 
city streets

• one of the most complex Bay Trail gaps 
in the region:

• existing wetlands
• railroad line, activated in future
• SF Public Utilities Commission land
• adjacent residential neighborhood
• nearby Hetch‐Hetchy water pipes
• South Bay Salt Pond restoration
• former gun club, required clean‐up





• $46,000 Bay Trail/Coastal Conservancy 
planning grant awarded to the City of 
Menlo Park

• identified alignment alternatives, 
conducted topographical surveys and 
soil tests, and created construction cost 
estimates

• public workshops were held in 
partnership with the City of East Palo 
Alto 

• a preferred alignment was identified 
and the final plan released in 2005

First Step: Alignment Study



• $40,000 Bay Trail/Coastal Conservancy 
planning grant awarded to the 
Midpeninsula Regional Open Space 
District (MROSD) in 2010

• completed conceptual design, CEQA 
initial study and environmental review

• Working group included Menlo Park, 
East Palo Alto and SFPUC

• refined the original preferred alignment: 
combination of bike lanes, paved paths 
and raised boardwalk trail

• MROSD agreement with SF PUC on 
public access easement in exchange for 
land needed to underground Hetch
Hetchy water pipes

• Cost estimate: $2.1 million

Moving the Alignment
Study Forward





• 2012:  $400,000 awarded from Santa Clara County Stanford mitigation fund

• 2013:  East Palo Alto finalized the Four Corners Transit‐Oriented Development 
Specific Plan that includes the Ravenswood Bay Trail Connection

MEANWHILE . . . 

• 2014:  Facebook agreed to construct 
a connecting Bay Trail segment along 
University Avenue between the 
Ravenswood Bay Trail Connection 
and Bayshore Highway.  It was 
completed last year.



San Mateo County Measure A Funds

ABAG submitted a funding request on behalf of the partners and 
$1 million is in the process of being awarded to the project by San Mateo County!

• The application included letters of 
support from East Palo Alto, Menlo Park, 
Midpeninsula Regional Open Space 
District and Facebook

• The funds will be applied to construction 
costs and an MOU will be signed by the 
three agencies.  Additional needs will be 
covered by the Midpeninsula Regional 
Open Space District’s Measure AA funds 
and/or Santa Clara County funds. 

• San Mateo County Parks has 
incorporated this project into their 
Measure A budget and it is on track for 
formal approval by the San Mateo 
County Board of Supervisors in 
September.



Thank you to our public and private 
partners for their commitment to 
completing a critical gap in the 

Bay Trail system!


	07-24-15 Cover letter.pdf
	07-24-15 RSVP
	07-24-15 Directions-Map
	07-24-15 Agenda
	Draft Board Minutes 10-09-14
	Tom Huening resignation letter
	Raigoza Letter of Interest
	Romeo letter of interest
	WillFourt_BayTrailLetterofInterest
	07_24_15 Ferry Point Loop Trail memo
	Ferry Point Loop article
	07_24_15 FPL_Slides_1
	07_24_15 Board officer assignment memo
	Bay Trail Nonprofit Financial Snapshot - July 2014 - April 2015
	07_24_15 ABAG-BT Financial Reports
	5% Bridge Toll Funds.pdf
	2% Bridge Toll Funds
	Prop 84 Pass Through
	Explore the Coast

	07_24_15 EPA-Menlo Park_MROSD Presentation



